
 
 
 
Email: committeeservices@horsham.gov.uk 
Direct line: 01403 215465 
 

 
Horsham District Council, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1RL 
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded)   Horsham.gov.uk   Chief Executive – Jane Eaton 
 
 

222 1

Council 
 
Thursday, 25th January, 2024 at 6.45 pm or immediately after the end of the Council 
meeting, whichever is later 
 
Conference Room, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham 
 
To: All Members of the Council 
 
You are summoned to the meeting to transact the following business 

Jane Eaton 
Chief Executive 

Agenda 
 

   
Page No. 

 
 GUIDANCE ON EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL PROCEDURE   
1.   Apologies for absence   
2.   Declarations of Members' Interests  
 To receive any declarations of interest from Members 

 
 

 
3.   Questions from the Public  
 To receive questions from the public under Rules 4j2.1 – 4j2.13 

 
 

 
4.   Recommendations from Cabinet 5 - 6 
 To receive and, if approved, adopt the recommendations from the meeting of 

Cabinet held on 25 January: 
  
(a)   Local Authority Housing Fund Top Up (report of the Cabinet Member 

for Finance & Resources is available at: Agenda Item 7)  
 

 

 
5.   Appointment to the Independent Remuneration Panel 7 - 12 
 To receive the report of the Chief Executive 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack

https://horsham.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2377&Ver=4%20%20%20%20


This page is intentionally left blank



GUIDANCE ON EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL PROCEDURE 
(Full details in Part 4a of the Council’s Constitution) 

Addressing the 
Council 

Members must address the meeting through the Chairman.  When the 
Chairman wishes to speak during a debate, any Member speaking at 
the time must stop.  The Chairman will decide whether he or she prefers 
Members to stand or sit when addressing the Council. 
 

Quorum Quorum is one quarter of the whole number of Members. If there is not a 
quorum present, the meeting will adjourn immediately. Remaining 
business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chairman. If 
a date is not fixed, the remaining business will be considered at the next 
ordinary meeting. 
 

Declarations of 
Interest 
 

Members should state clearly in which item they have an interest and 
the nature of the interest (i.e. personal; personal & prejudicial; or 
pecuniary).  If in doubt, seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in 
advance of the meeting 
 

Announcements These should be brief and to the point and are for information only – no 
debate/decisions 
 

Rules of debate  The Chairman controls debate and normally follows these rules but 
Chairman’s interpretation, application or waiver is final. 
 
- No speeches until a proposal has been moved (mover may explain 

purpose) and seconded 
- Chairman may require motion to be written down and handed to 

him/her before it is discussed 
- Seconder may speak immediately after mover or later in the debate 
- Speeches must relate to the question under discussion or a personal 

explanation or a point of order (max 5 minutes) 
- A Member may not speak again except: 

o On an amendment 
o To move a further amendment if the motion has been 

amended since he/she last spoke 
o If first speech was on an amendment, to speak on the 

main issue (whether or not the amendment was carried) 
o In exercise of a right of reply.  Mover of motion at end of 

debate on original motion and any amendments (may not 
otherwise speak on amendment).  Mover of amendment 
has no right of reply. 

o On a point of order – must relate to an alleged breach of 
Council Procedure Rules or law.  Chairman must hear 
the point of order immediately.  The ruling of the 
Chairman on the matter will be final. 

o Personal explanation – relating to part of an earlier 
speech by the Member which may appear to have been 
misunderstood.  The Chairman’s ruling on the 
admissibility of the personal explanation will be final. 

- Amendments to motions must be to: 
o Refer the matter to an appropriate body/individual for 

(re)consideration 
o Leave out and/or insert or add others (as long as this 

does not negate the motion) 
- One amendment at a time to be moved, discussed and decided 

upon. 
- Any amended motion becomes the substantive motion to which 

further amendments may be moved. 
Page 3

Agenda Annex



- A Member may alter a motion that he/she has moved with the 
consent of the meeting and seconder (such consent to be signified 
without discussion). 

-  A Member may withdraw a motion that he/she has moved with the 
consent of the meeting and seconder (such consent to be signified 
without discussion). 

- The mover of a motion has the right of reply at the end of the debate 
on the motion (unamended or amended). 

 
Voting Any matter will be decided by a simple majority of those voting, by show 

of hands or if no dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting unless: 
- Two Members request a recorded vote  
- A recorded vote is required by law. 
Any Member may request their vote for, against or abstaining to be 
recorded in the minutes. 
In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman will have a second or 
casting vote (whether or not he or she has already voted on the issue). 
 

 

Page 4



EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL 
25 January 2024 

CABINET RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

Recommendation to Council made at the Cabinet meeting held on 25 January 

On 5 January 2024, Government invited local authorities to express their interest in 
increasing their delivery of the Local Authority Housing Fund in 2023/24, across either the 
LAHF1 or LAHF2 scheme.   

The Council has expressed an interest in replicating LAHF2 and has applied for an allocation 
of £0.76m funding from Government and will add £1.02m of its own funding to provide 2 
large resettlement homes and 2 temporary accommodation (“TA”) homes by the 29 March 
2024 deadline.  

The Council can return unspent funding to the Government should it wish or be unable to 
deliver all the housing.  
 
The Cabinet is to consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources 
immediately before this Extraordinary Council meeting. Cabinet is recommended to: 
 

RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL 
 

i) Proceed with the application for, and receipt of, the grant allocation for the 
Council to provide or facilitate the provision of 2 large resettlement homes 
and 2 temporary accommodation homes.  

ii) Approve capital spend of £1.78m in the 2023/24 capital programme. 
 

REASONS 
 

i) To apply for, receive and use the grant to help purchase / provide more 
affordable homes for the district. 

ii) Full Council must approve the capital budget. 
iii) Subject to Council approval, to avoid the requirement to seek Cabinet’s 

approval for the purchase by Horsham District Council of each individual 
property that would otherwise be required to give effect to this initiative.  

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 Report to Council  

 Thursday, 25 January 2024 
 By the Chief Executive 
 DECISION REQUIRED 

 Not Exempt 
 

 

 

Appointment to the Independent Remuneration Panel            

Executive Summary 

The Council is required to appoint an Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) comprising 
at least three members in order to consider Members’ Allowances.  

The IRP completed a full Member Allowance review in April 2021 and interim reviews were 
concluded in both February and September 2023.  

One of the current IRP members has passed away and, as such, the Council does not 
currently have a fully appointed IRP.  

Whilst a full review of Members’ Allowances will not be required until late 2024, an interim 
review of Members’ Allowances is required to account for the staff pay award that was 
agreed in November 2023, for the 2023/24 financial year. 

An advert for an IRP member has been published and will remain open until a suitable 
candidate is identified. Interviews have been scheduled with the Monitoring Officer and the 
Democratic Services & Elections Manager. It is therefore recommended that the 
Monitoring Officer is delegated authority to appoint to the IRP, should a suitable candidate 
be identified through the interview and recruitment process. 

Recommendations 
 
That the Council is recommended: 

 
i) to delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer to appoint a panel member to sit on 

the Independent Remuneration Panel 
 

 
Reasons for Recommendations  
 
i) To ensure that the Council has a fully appointed IRP, in a timely manner, in order 

that it can undertake an interim review and proffer recommendations as to how to 
reflect the latest staff pay award in Members’ Allowances.  

            

Background Papers 
None 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 
 

Wards affected: All 

Contact: Aisha Nottage, Democratic Services and Elections Manager. 
 

Page 8



 
 

Background Information 

1 Introduction and Background 

1.1 Members’ Allowances must be considered by an IRP at least every four years.  
 

1.2 Councils are obliged to appoint an IRP to consider the level of allowances that are 
appropriate for the various responsibilities that Members undertake, including a 
basic allowance for all Members. 

 
1.3 One of the IRP members passed away and it is therefore necessary to appoint a 

replacement member to the IRP, so that the IRP is fully appointed and can carry out 
an interim review during the 2023/24 financial year to consider the effect of the most 
recent staff pay award.  

 

2 Relevant Council policy 

2.1 To have a fully appointed IRP to facilitate the review of Members’ Allowances. 
 

3 Details 

3.1 The IRP was appointed in October 2020, with a replacement member being 
appointed in April 2022.  

 
3.2 The current scheme requires that the rates of Members’ Allowances are index 

linked to staff pay awards.  
 
3.3 An interim review was undertaken in September 2023 as the most recent staff pay 

award was expressed in monetary value rather than percentage terms. 
Consequently, the IRP made recommendations and Full Council agreed that fixed 
pay awards should be applied to Members’ Allowances, using the median pay point 
to achieve a percentage figure.  

 
3.3 The 2023/24 staff pay award that was agreed was neither a percentage pay award, 

nor a fixed value pay award. Instead, a mix of percentage and fixed awards have 
been applied, depending on the salary point of the employee. Thus, an interim 
review is required. The IRP will complete this review and make recommendations to 
Full Council as to how the staff pay award may be reflected in Members’ 
Allowances. 

 
3.4 The recommendations from the interim review, would need to be received and 

decided upon at the Full Council meeting on 21 February 2024, to ensure that the 
changes can be implemented in the current financial year. It is therefore important 
that a fully appointed IRP is put in place in a timely manner. 

 

4 Next Steps 

4.1 Once the interview process is complete and the Council has delegated authority to 
the Monitoring Officer to appoint to the IRP, the relevant appointment will be made.  

Page 9



 
 

 
4.2 Once the IRP is fully appointed, it will be able to undertake an interim review, as 

required, to enable the employee pay award to be applied to the Members’ 
Allowances. 

 
4.3 Officers will consider the production of a formulaic mechanism (to be contained in 

the constitution) which provides for value and percentage (or a combination of both) 
staff pay awards to be reflected in Members’ Allowances.  

 

5 Views of the Policy Development Advisory Group and Outcome of 
Consultations 

5.1 Not applicable. 
 

6 Other Courses of Action Considered but Rejected 

6.1 The Council is required by statute to have a fully appointed IRP and, as such, there 
are no alternative courses of action that can be taken.  Whilst a full review is not 
required at present, having a fully appointed IRP will allow the interim review to be 
carried out in the current financial year to consider how to reflect the latest staff pay 
award in Members’ Allowances. A delay to the decision would have negative 
budgetary implications, and potential negative impacts on individual Councillor’s tax 
arrangements.  

 

7 Resource Consequences 

7.1 There are no resource consequences arising from the subject delegation contained 
in this report save that administratively a record of the delegation shall be retained. 

 
7.2 There are no direct financial consequences relating to the subject IRP appointment 

but the Council has in the past paid a fee to each member of the IRP in recognition 
of their work.  IRP members received £500 each, for the conduct of two interim 
reviews in 2023. The next full review will take place in 2024/25 and the one-off 
payment for this will be determined at that time.    

  
7.3 There may also, in due course, be financial consequences arising from the 

recommendations of the IRP. 
 

8 Legal Considerations and Implications 

8.1 The legislative framework for Members’ Allowances is contained in the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 (“the 1989 Act”), the Local Government Act 
2000 (“the 2000 Act”) and the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) 
Regulations 2003. 

 
8.2 Local Authorities are required to establish and maintain an IRP (of at least three 

individuals) which will broadly provide the local authority with advice on its scheme, 
the amounts to be paid. Local Authorities must have regard to this advice.  

Page 10



 
 

  

9 Risk Assessment 

9.1 If the Council does not appoint a replacement member to the IRP, the IRP will not 
be properly constituted pursuant to legislative provisions and would not be able to 
undertake the interim review of Members’ Allowances within this financial year. 

 

10 Procurement implications 

10.1 None.  

11.  Equalities and Human Rights implications / Public Sector Equality 
Duty 

11.1 There are not any equalities impacts arising from the delegation of the authority to 
the Monitoring Officer to appoint a member to the IRP.  

11.2 Public sector equalities duties are considered by the IRP when undertaking reviews. 

 
12 Environmental Implications 
 
12.1 None. 
 

13 Other Considerations 

13.1 None. 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE ON EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL PROCEDURE
	4 Recommendations from Cabinet
	5 Appointment to the Independent Remuneration Panel

